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Palerang Financial Services Ltd (PFSL) proudly supported the Rotary Club of
Bungendore with a $1,000 sponsorship to deliver the Youth Mental Health
First Aid Course, run in collaboration with the Phynix Initiative. Over a two-
day program in March 2025, 10 local community members—including
parents, carers, and school representatives—were trained as Mental Health
First Aiders.
Participants gained vital skills to recognise and respond to common mental
health problems in young people, learning how to start conversations, offer
support, and guide youth towards professional help when needed. The
training not only provided practical tools but also encouraged open
dialogue, with some participants sharing their own experiences, reinforcing
the importance of building community-wide awareness and support.

Rotary Club of Bungendore
Youth Mental Health First Aid Course

PFSL proudly awarded $72,000 in scholarships and bursaries this year, supporting local students to pursue university
and TAFE studies. Our recipients span a wide range of fields—from medicine, teaching and paramedicine to engineering,
politics and the arts—showcasing the breadth of ambition in our region.

Recipients:
Nelson Sargent (Political Science, ANU), Isabella Hindmarsh (Biomedical Engineering, ANU), Jacob McEndry (Social
Science, UOW), Adelaide Wall (Paramedicine, CSU), Sam Watson (Mining Engineering, UNSW), Chloe Parkinson (Medical
Studies, UNSW), Charlotte Jones (Medical Studies, ANU), Lachlan Vearing (Creative Arts, UOW), Meg Donnelly (Health &
PE, UC), Claire Schweikert (Politics, Science & International Relations, UC), Lachlan English (Diploma of Engineering, SCU)
and Telara-Ann Edwards (Education Support, Goulburn TAFE).

These scholarships ease financial pressures, inspire achievement, and strengthen the future of our communities.

Investing in Our Future
2025 Scholarship Recipients

It takes a community to raise the next generation. This course goes a long way to helping support the next generation
who may show signs of mental health issues as they navigate life and its ups and downs.
Rotary Club of Bungendore

PFSL proudly supported the Bungendore Bowling & Sports Club with a $32,000
Community Grant to build a new fenced playground, creating a safe, family-
friendly space that encourages outdoor play and community connection. Since
opening, the Club has seen more bookings and enquiries from families and local
groups, and a grand opening on 21 Sept drew ~200 attendees.
The project has strengthened social inclusion and wellbeing; parents have peace
of mind while children play, and more community events (including kids’ parties)
are now choosing the venue. The Club also contributed additional funds and
volunteer labour to complete the build, reinforcing the community’s commitment
to the space.

Bungendore Bowling & Sports Club
Playground Project

The overwhelmingly positive response to the new playground is fantastic. Our
volunteers worked tirelessly to deliver a community-focused space the whole
town can enjoy for years to come.
Lindsay Noone, Bungendore Bowling & Sports Club

I am so very grateful to the Community Bank for supporting me as a young local music student. This scholarship has
made a massive impact on my musical journey, allowing me to pursue incredible opportunities like performing the
National Anthem at The Australian of The Year Awards. Thank you for helping me follow my dreams.
Emma, previous scholarship recipient



Braidwood FM
Promotional Apparel

Braidwood Swimming Club
2024/25 Season Sponsorship

PFSL provided $5,000 to support the Braidwood Swimming
Club’s 2024/25 season, enabling the purchase of high-quality
swim parkas for 72 junior and senior swimmers. The
sponsorship removed cost barriers for families, fostered a
strong sense of team identity, and ensured children could stay
warm and engaged throughout the season. Importantly, it also
strengthened water safety outcomes by encouraging
participation in swimming programs that build skills,
confidence, and community spirit.

We feel so lucky to have a swim club like this in our town. Our
kids have not only become stronger swimmers, but they’ve
also gained real confidence in the water… It’s not just about
competition, it’s about belonging, learning, and growing. Huge
thanks to everyone who makes this happen each season.
Parent of two club swimmers

Braidwood Preschool
Open Gardens 2024

PFSL proudly supported the Braidwood Preschool’s 10th annual Open
Gardens weekend with a $1,000 sponsorship. The funding enabled wider
advertising and event promotion, helping attract visitors from across
NSW, Canberra, Sydney, and beyond. The result was a record $15,608
raised for much-needed preschool maintenance projects, while the event
also delivered family-friendly activities that enriched the Braidwood and
Araluen communities.

In 2024/25, PFSL proudly sponsored the Crookwell Rugby Club with $5,000 to support
uniforms marking the Club’s 50th anniversary. This partnership not only helped the
players take the field with pride but also reinforced the Community Bank’s
commitment to strengthening local sport and celebrating milestones that matter to
our region. 

Crookwell Rugby Club – Celebrating
50 Years in Local Sport

PFSL supported Braidwood FM with a $1,000
sponsorship to provide branded shirts and caps
for their presenters and tech team. The new
apparel gave the station a professional and
unified look during their open broadcast, building
pride among volunteers and strengthening their
connection with the local community.

Having the support of the Community Bank allowed the Preschool to 
advertise our event more broadly than we would have otherwise been able
to afford. The additional funds raised mean we can now complete
important maintenance projects for our children.
Rachel Farley, Braidwood Preschool

The club is excited to welcome our partnership with the Community Bank. This
sponsorship is more than just a logo on a jersey, it’s a commitment to strengthening
local sport and our community.
Rachael Croker, Crookwell Rugby Club

Had a fantastic open broadcast where all
presenters and tech team were in their shirts
and caps looking very professional.
Crystal Hart, Braidwood FM



Bungendore Preschool
Annual Fair 2025

PFSL proudly supported the Queanbeyan Evening Branch
of the Country Women’s Association with a $2,500
sponsorship for their International Women’s Day High
Tea, raising funds and awareness for the Love Your Sister
charity. The event drew 170 community members and
was supported by 40 volunteers, creating an inspiring
afternoon of connection, education, and generosity.
The High Tea raised an incredible $31,000 for Love Your
Sister, with funds going towards advancing precision
medicine in cancer treatment. Attendees also heard
personal stories, celebrated the legacy of Connie
Johnson OAM, and enjoyed the involvement of Sam
Johnson, who continued fundraising that evening at the
Queanbeyan Rodeo.
The event gained wider recognition when Australian
Broadcasting Corporation’s Australian Story filmed on
the day, showcasing the power of community spirit and
the importance of the cause.

Queanbeyan Evening CWA
International Women’s Day High Tea 2025

Having the support of Community Bank Bungendore for
our three-day community event was fantastic. The
sponsorship helped us introduce new initiatives such as
the inaugural Remount Veterans Campdraft, improve the
event layout, and ensure competitor and livestock safety.
The success of the event is a credit to Community Bank
Bungendore.
Steven Hart

Bungendore Campdraft 2025

PFSL proudly supported the Bungendore Preschool with a $7,500 sponsorship for the Bungendore Preschool Fair
2025, which was named in honour of the Community Bank. This major community event raised vital funds for the
preschool while creating a day of celebration that brought together families, local businesses, and community
groups.
The fair featured market stalls, entertainment, and family activities, while also providing a platform to showcase local
small businesses and charities, strengthening connections and boosting the local economy. More than just a
fundraiser, it was a chance for the whole community to come together and celebrate Bungendore’s unique spirit.

PFSL proudly supported the Bungendore Campdraft Club
with a $5,000 sponsorship as Major Event Sponsor of the
Bungendore Campdraft 2025. Held over three days on the
Easter weekend, the event drew over 300 competitors and
their families, plus 500 spectators, creating a major boost
for the local economy and community spirit.
A highlight of the weekend was the inaugural Remount
Veterans Campdraft event, attended by special guests The
Hon Kristy McBain MP and Air Marshall Robert Chipman
AO CSC. Twelve veterans competed while their service
histories were read aloud, receiving strong support from
both the crowd and fellow competitors. The moving
ceremony and competition provided a memorable
experience for the veterans and their families, embracing
them as part of the Bungendore community.

Thanks to the sponsorship, we were able to name the entire
Fair after the Community Bank, creating a special event that
truly brought people together.
David Webster

What an inspiring afternoon! A big congratulations to the
CWA NSW Evening Branch on their amazing High Tea and
for giving us the opportunity to hear from Sam from Love
Your Sister. Like most Australians, I knew of Sam and his
sister Connie’s story, but hearing it told so personally was
incredibly moving. We cried and we laughed, and we left
feeling inspired, proud and humbled by their bravery and
the heroic difference they have made for every
Australian. The fact that over $30,000 was raised is
simply astounding. I feel privileged to have attended and
proud that our Community Bank supported such a
powerful event.
Helen Farley



PFSL proudly supported the iconic Braidwood Airing of the Quilts
with a $2,300 sponsorship, enhancing one of the town’s most
celebrated cultural events. The funding provided significant prize
money, attracting an impressive number of quilts of outstanding
quality from across Braidwood, Queanbeyan–Palerang, wider
NSW, and even Victoria.
Beyond the financial support, the Community Bank team actively
participated by attending the event and rolling out a red carpet at
the entrance – a detail that created a sense of occasion and was
widely complimented by visitors. The result was a vibrant
celebration of textile artistry, showcasing the dedication of the
Braidwood Quilters and strengthening community pride.

Braidwood Quilters
Airing of the Quilts 2024

PFSL proudly partnered with the Crookwell Senior Green Devils Rugby League
Club through a $5,000 major sponsorship. The support reduced player
registration costs, funded uniforms and equipment, and ensured players had
the resources they needed for the season.
More than financial relief, the sponsorship helps keep rugby league a unifying
force in Crookwell—bringing neighbours together, fostering pride, and
strengthening traditions. The Bendigo Bank logo now features on jerseys, polos,
signage, and programs, highlighting the partnership both on and off the field.

Crookwell Senior Green Devils
Major Sponsorship 2025

PFSL proudly supported the
Smoking and Welcome Ceremony
held in December 2024 as part of
the establishment of the
Braidwood Yarning Circle. With a
$1,000 sponsorship, the event
reinforced the importance of
Aboriginal culture and participation
within the community.
The ceremony attracted around 80
participants and drew wide
attention, including front-page
coverage in the Changing Times. It
played a key role in embedding the
Yarning Circle as a lasting symbol
of First Nations culture and
connection in Braidwood.

2 Fires Festival
Smoking & Welcome Ceremony

The smoking ceremony was an enormous success, attracting a significant crowd for an important Aboriginal event in
the Braidwood community. The event received page 1 coverage in the local paper and played an important role in
the establishment of the Yarning Circle.
Sheelagh Noonan, President, Two Fires Festival

Our partnership with the Community Bank has been a game-changer for our club,
teams, and the community. The support has provided us the opportunity to lower our
player registrations and help provide our players with the resources they need
throughout the season. We are grateful for their commitment to making an impact on
the 2025 season. Crookwell Green Devils Committee



Captains Flat Fishing Club –  Sponsorship

Gunning Pastoral & Agricultural Society
2025 Gunning Show

PFSL proudly supported the Gunning Pastoral & Agricultural
Society with a $2,000 sponsorship for the Show Jumping
section at the 2025 Gunning Show. The funding enabled a full
program of six events, attracting strong competitor numbers
and delighting spectators with one of the show’s most popular
features.

Bendigo Bank’s sponsorship helped us run an amazing event
programme that boosted competitor numbers and added to
the community spirit of our show.
Belinda Cosgrove, Chief Horse Steward

Consensus Education Foundation
ThinkTank Program

PFSL proudly supported the Consensus Education Foundation with two
Community Grants totalling $24,930 to expand the innovative ThinkTank
program. ThinkTank brings students together from across the Southern
Tablelands to sharpen their critical thinking, communication, and collaboration
skills by investigating key questions from history and contemporary society.
Our funding enabled the program to grow from 4 to 6 classes, providing more
options for busy students and opening up 31 additional Community Bank
Scholarships. As a result, participation soared to 82 students across 17 schools by
Term 3, 2025, compared to just 29 students in late 2024.

PFSL proudly supported the Tarago Show Society with a $5,000 sponsorship to help deliver
the much-loved 2025 Tarago Show. The funding enabled important grounds upgrades for
safety and accessibility, including new signage, internet access, and a concrete slab. It also
allowed the Society to provide extra entertainment for families, from live music and
performers to fairy floss and popcorn stands.
The event drew an estimated 1,630 visitors and was made possible thanks to the efforts of
around 50 local volunteers. Together, they created a vibrant, family-friendly celebration that
showcased rural life and strengthened community pride.

Tarago Show Society
2025 Tarago Show

PFSL proudly supported the Captains Flat Fishing
Club with a $2,000 sponsorship to purchase paddle
boards and life jackets for community use at fishing
competitions and social gatherings. The new
equipment has already brought joy to children and
families, adding a fun and safe activity alongside the
club’s traditional fishing events. The initiative has
helped strengthen community ties by encouraging
participation from both young people and adults,
while also promoting safe enjoyment of the local
waterways.

Think Tank has really helped me gain more understanding of the world around us!
Angus, Year 6

I liked the collaborative discussions based on what we were learning. It’s an incredible
way to develop a variety of skills. From critical thinking to articulating an idea, ThinkTank
has strengthened how I look at the world. Chelsea, Year 12

The sponsorship will help bring Captains Flat and
the surrounding community together. We were able
to purchase paddle boards and accessories for
everyone to use at our events, and the children
had a wonderful time enjoying them.
 Anita King, Captains Flat Fishing Club



South Coast Australian Stock Horse Branch
Braidwood Event

Braidwood Show Society
2025 Braidwood Show

PFSL proudly supported the 2025 Braidwood Show with a $12,000
sponsorship, helping deliver one of the district’s most anticipated
community events. The funding enabled quality entertainment and
activities, boosting attendance and creating a vibrant platform to
showcase local talents — from horsemanship and livestock to arts, crafts,
and produce.
With more than 1,700 people attending, the show once again brought
together farmers, families, and the wider community, strengthening local
pride and connection.

PFSL proudly supported the Braidwood National Theatre &
Community Centre with a $7,500 sponsorship to replace its
outdated gas heating system. The upgrade has transformed the
heritage venue, ensuring year-round comfort for audiences and
volunteers alike.
The impact was immediately felt during the January Book Fair,
where more than 1,000 visitors enjoyed a cooler, more welcoming
environment across five days of trade. Likewise, the Braidwood
Film Club has reported strong attendance and overwhelmingly
positive feedback on the improved heating and cooling. The
investment ensures the Theatre continues to thrive as a hub for
arts, culture, and community connection.

Braidwood National Theatre
Heating & Cooling Upgrade

PFSL proudly supported the South Coast Australian
Stock Horse Branch with a $1,000 sponsorship to help
deliver their event at the Braidwood Showground. The
funding contributed to prizes for competitors and
accommodation for judges, ensuring a successful and
well-run competition.
The event provided the local community with a valued
opportunity to showcase and compete with their
Australian Stock Horses, celebrating the breed’s
heritage and role in both farming and sport.

The generosity of your sponsorship helped us
successfully run our event at Braidwood Showground.
It helped with purchasing prizes for our competitors
and accommodation for our judges.
Tiffany Watterson

Word of mouth to the committee from most of the attendees said it was
a very successful show.
Community feedback, Braidwood Show Society

In past summers volunteers were walking the floor with jugs of
water to prevent people from fainting. Now, with efficient heating
and cooling, the Theatre is safe, comfortable, and more inviting for
everyone. Marjorie Lemin, Braidwood Citizen of the Year 2025



PFSL proudly supported Bungendore Netball Club with a $5,000
sponsorship to supply new uniforms for the 2025 season. With 13
teams and 120 players competing in the Queanbeyan Netball
Association winter competition, every player stepped onto the
court in fresh kit, building pride, unity, and confidence across the
club.
The uniforms not only reduced the financial burden for families
but also lifted the club’s identity, drawing positive feedback from
players, parents, and even rival clubs. The partnership was
showcased in local media and across social channels, highlighting
the Community Bank’s commitment to encouraging healthy,
active lifestyles.

Bungendore Netball Club
New Uniforms

PFSL proudly supported Bombay Landcare with an $11,000 Community
Grant to design and install an interpretive information board at Bombay
Reserve. The project, years in the making, was sparked after the
devastating North Black Range Fire of 2019 and has since grown into a
powerful symbol of resilience and care for the local environment.
The project brought together volunteers, artists, historians, scientists, and
Indigenous knowledge holders, who gave countless hours to research,
draft content, and guide the design. Their collective effort ensured the
board authentically reflects the history, ecology, and cultural heritage of
the reserve. The hand-illustrated display now welcomes thousands of
visitors each year, deepening understanding of the landscape and
encouraging shared responsibility to protect it.

Bombay Landcare 
Information Board Project

This board tells the story of the Bombay reserve and region—from the
geology under our feet, to the local flora, fauna, stories and events that
have shaped this place. It’s a beautiful example of perseverance and
what can happen when Landcare, art and local community come
together.
Erin Brinkley, Local Landcare Coordinator & Bombay Resident

Bungendore Netball Club has been fortunate to have Community
Bank Bungendore as its major sponsor and this support has
enabled us to expand our club and provide our netball
community with essential goods. Recently, we were able to
upgrade our uniforms, which was made possible by Community
Bank Bungendore's sponsorship. This alleviated some of the
financial burden on our families. We appreciate Community Bank
Bungendore's dedication to encouraging healthy lifestyles
through local community sport.
Heidi Walsh

PFSL proudly supported the Bungendore Bunyips Junior Cricket Club with a $3,000 sponsorship to provide essential
cricket equipment and team uniforms for the 2024/25 season. The funding ensured all children could compete safely in the
ACT Junior Cricket Competition and proudly represent Bungendore in matching team uniforms. With registrations growing
each year, this support meant more young people had the chance to learn, play, and enjoy community sport locally.

Bungendore Bunyips Junior Cricket Club
2024/25 Season

As relative newcomers to Bungendore, our family could not be more grateful for the warm welcome we’ve found with the
Bunyips cricket team. The inclusiveness, especially in championing a side with so many talented girls, is truly remarkable.
Over the past few years, we’ve watched their confidence grow, their skills sharpen, and their friendships flourish. It’s a joy
to be part of such a community-focused club where everyone belongs and every player gets to shine.
Parent of two players



PFSL supported the Braidwood Jockey Club with a $3,300
sponsorship to provide a big screen at the 2025 Braidwood
Races. The screen allowed visitors to follow the action
throughout the day and ensured sponsors were well
acknowledged, adding to the atmosphere and professionalism
of the event.
The sponsorship meant the Club could deliver a key feature
that would otherwise have been unaffordable, making the race
day more enjoyable and engaging for the community.

Braidwood Jockey Club
Big Screen at 2025 Races

PFSL proudly supported the Braidwood Junior Soccer Club with a
$5,000 sponsorship to deliver professional coaching clinics for
both players and volunteer coaches. The program, run by
COERVER Coaching ACT, gave 95 junior players aged 3–16 the
chance to experience higher-level skills training locally, while 12
volunteer coaches were equipped with age-appropriate drills,
techniques, and confidence to lead their teams.
The sponsorship not only reduced the need for families to travel
outside Braidwood for development opportunities but also helped
retain players in the local competition. The investment extended
into the community, with funds reinvested into local businesses
through catering and supplies. The result is stronger skills, greater
confidence, and a more vibrant soccer culture in Braidwood.

Braidwood Junior Soccer Club
Upskilling Coaches and Players

Due to your sponsorship the Braidwood Jockey Club was able
to have the big screen broadcasting races for all visitors to see
on the day. We were also able to advertise all our generous
sponsors. If the Committee had to pay the full amount of the
big screen they would not have been able to afford it and it
would have taken away from the atmosphere on the day.
June Williams, Treasurer

PFSL proudly supported the second annual Braidwood Show Society
Campdraft with a $1,000 sponsorship, funding the Bendigo Bank
Buckles as highly valued trophies. The prizes added prestige to the
event, making it more attractive to competitors and helping to ensure
the weekend ran at full capacity.
The sponsorship also enabled the Committee to preserve income
generated from the event, which will go towards future improvements
at the Braidwood Showgrounds, benefitting many community groups
who use the facilities year-round.

Braidwood Show Society
Bendigo Bank Buckles

The Braidwood Show Society Campdraft ran at capacity and was
heralded as a huge success by competitors and other Campdraft
Committees. We couldn't have achieved this without sponsorship
Catherine Daniel, Committee Member

I recently attended a Coerver coaching clinic in Braidwood. I was expecting a mostly sit-down, theory-based course –
but it turned out to be the complete opposite in the best possible way. The sessions were hands-on, energetic, and fun,
with activities tailored to suit each coach’s own fitness level and learning pace. Although I’ve been involved in football
for a few decades as a player, the clinic offered fresh insights into how to better connect with junior players. One of
the most valuable things I learned was how to structure age-appropriate sessions focusing on fun and skill
development in a motivated environment. The experience has made a real difference to my confidence and approach
as a coach. This kind of training will have a lasting impact on our community.
Dale Gallagher, Coach



PFSL proudly supported the Rotary Club of Bungendore with a
$2,000 sponsorship for the Annual Christmas Hamper Appeal.
This community-driven initiative brought together local groups
and partners, including Anglicare, to provide 88 hampers to
families in need during the holiday season.
With rising financial pressures affecting many households, the
hampers offered not only food and essentials but also a
reminder that the community cares.

Rotary Club of Bungendore
Annual Christmas Hampers 2024

PFSL proudly supported the Bungendore Quilters Inc.
with a $400 sponsorship for their Annual Quilt Exhibition,
held at the Bungendore War Memorial Hall in November
2024. The event drew over 400 visitors, including a bus
group of 43 Illawarra Quilters who travelled to enjoy both
Bungendore’s show and Braidwood’s Airing of the Quilts.
The exhibition showcased local creativity and
craftsmanship while also attracting tourism and boosting
the local economy. Supported by 22 volunteers and
contributions from local businesses, the event was a true
community effort.

Bungendore Quilters Inc
Annual Quilt Exhibition 2024

The Annual Christmas Hamper Appeal brings together
community groups to support those in need over this difficult
time. It may be for financial, health or other issues but knowing
someone is thinking of them makes life just a little easier. The
support of our Community Bank of Bungendore helps make this
happen each year. Thank you so much.
Christine Allard

PFSL proudly supported the Lions Club of Canberra City with a
$1,680 sponsorship for the World Festival of Magic 2024, providing
tickets so local families, including those with children with
disabilities and additional needs, could attend the show.
The event delivered inclusive entertainment designed to be
accessible and welcoming, with flexible seating, adjusted lighting,
and a relaxed environment for all. For many families, this was a rare
chance to experience live entertainment together, free from
financial barriers.

Lions Club of Canberra City
World Festival of Magic 2024

Thanks for sending through tickets—we had a lovely time and really
enjoyed it. We deeply appreciate it from the bottom of our hearts.
It’s the little things you do that make a difference. Every year we
look forward to it.

We had over 400 people come through the door who
enjoyed the show very much.
Jane Bloomfield



Braidwood & District Heavy Horse Association 
Alma Cup Sponsorship

PFSL provided a $31,500 community grant to
Braidwood Central School P&C for the purchase of a
new tractor. The equipment is already transforming
agricultural studies at the school, giving more than 100
students access to safe, modern machinery as part of
the curriculum.
The tractor will also benefit the wider community, with
plans for its use on the Braidwood town common to
support weed control and land management.

Braidwood Central School P&C
Tractor Purchase

The story booklet celebrates 50 years of strong
community action in the Wamboin area and will be a

great resource for new residents, current households
and also serve as a good model for other small

communities to showcase and further develop their
own vibrant communities

Braidwood Golf Club
Golf Opens & Recycling Upgrade

PFSL supported the Braidwood & District Heavy Horse Show
with $2,500, funding the creation of the prestigious Alma
Cup trophy, a cash prize for the Grand Champion, and
transport to ensure local seniors could attend. The
sponsorship helped celebrate the region’s heavy horse
heritage while making the event accessible to more of the
community.
The Alma Cup now stands as a lasting tribute to both the
district’s history and the Bank’s support of local traditions.

PFSL awarded a $22,500 community grant to Majors Creek
Recreation Land Manager for the repair and refurbishment of
the verandah flooring at the village’s Recreation Hall. The
upgrade will bring the facility up to current building and safety
standards, ensuring it continues to serve as a safe and
welcoming space for the 2,000 people who use it each year.
The Recreation Hall is the heart of the Majors Creek community,
hosting local sports, social gatherings, the annual New Year’s
Day Picnic, and the well-known Majors Creek Music Festival.
This grant helps safeguard the Hall’s future as a vital venue for
community life and cultural events.

Majors Creek Recreation Land Manager
Hall Verandah Upgrade

PFSL supported Braidwood Golf Club with $5,000 to
elevate the Men’s and Women’s Opens (drawing players
from across the region) and kick-start an environmental
upgrade with new recycling/waste/sand stations built with
the Men’s Shed and Scouts, including permanent
Community Bank signage.

The Alma Cup represents the pinnacle of achievement in our
Show, a perfect embodiment of your commitment to excellence
in community support.
Emma Thomas, Secretary, Braidwood & District Heavy Horse
Association

I have never experienced anything like the funding the
Community Bank provided. It is exceptional. What a great
partnership—and how beneficial for the students to have
a local business contribute this kind of money to boost
fundraising efforts.
 Adam Zanco, Principal

This isn’t just a tractor for the school. It’s a resource that
benefits the whole community. We’re incredibly grateful to
the Community Bank for making it possible.
Jill Kuchel, Head Teacher Agriculture



Bungendore Rugby Football Club 
Playing Gear for Mudchooks and Mudchicks

Captains Flat Community Preschool
Step by Step: Walking for a Brighter Future

PFSL proudly supported the Captains Flat Community
Preschool Association with a $500 sponsorship for its Step by
Step 45 km walk fundraiser. The event aimed to raise money
for much-needed outdoor play equipment, while also
strengthening community connections and raising awareness
of the preschool’s role in supporting local children and
families.
The walk brought together parents, educators, and supporters
who took on the challenge as a shared effort to invest in the
future of local children. The sponsorship helped provide
essential gear and t-shirts for participants, ensuring the
event’s success and creating strong visibility for the cause.

Thanks to the generous sponsorship from the Community
Bank, our 45 km walk fundraiser has gained incredible
momentum. Their support has allowed us to raise awareness
for the preschool’s need for new outdoor equipment and it
has brought our community closer together in a shared effort
to invest in our children’s future. We are deeply grateful for
their contribution, which has made this event possible and is
helping us reach our fundraising goal. Maggie Sing

Bungendore Seniors Association
2025 Seniors Festival

PFSL proudly supported the Bungendore Seniors Association with a $4,000
sponsorship for the Queanbeyan-Palerang Seniors Festival 2025. Now in its
seventh year, the event was fully booked once again, with 44 seniors
attending and a waitlist for places. The day provided a relaxed and welcoming
environment where older community members could learn about topics such
as positive ageing and self-care, seniors’ rights, and practical strategies for
strength and balance from Arthritis ACT. Guests also enjoyed a superb
morning tea and roast lunch provided by The Carrington, along with showbags
filled with information and treats. Importantly, the event fostered connection,
laughter, and community spirit. Many participants, also active members of
local service groups like Lions, Rotary, and VIEW, will take the information
learned back to share with others across the region.

PFSL proudly supported the Rotary Club of Bungendore with a $2,240 sponsorship for its
Defensive Driving Course 2025, at the Sutton Road Driver Training Centre. The program
gave 17 young drivers the chance to build confidence and skills for driving safely in
challenging local conditions, including wet, icy roads and encounters with wildlife.
This was the eighth course run by Rotary, meaning almost 130 young people in the district
have now benefited from defensive driver training. The day included hands-on sessions,
practical demonstrations, and even a BBQ lunch to keep energy levels high. Families also
shared the benefits, with parents feeling reassured that their children were safer behind
the wheel.

Rotary Club of Bungendore
Defensive Driving Course 2025

PFSL proudly supported the Bungendore Rugby
Football Club with a $4,546 sponsorship to provide
new playing gear for the Mudchooks and Mudchicks
teams in the 2025 winter competition. With around
60 players and volunteers involved, the funding
ensured that everyone could participate fully and
proudly represent their club without financial
barriers.
The club plays a vital role in the Bungendore
community, offering a welcoming environment where
players gain not only fitness but also social
connection and mental wellbeing. During the winter
months, when seasonal depression can be more
prevalent, the club’s family-centered approach
provides a place of belonging and support.
By ensuring no player has to pay to play, the club
fosters inclusivity and strengthens community ties—
making sport accessible to all.

Now in its seventh year, the 2025 Seniors Day was fantastic. It’s centred around 
important information for seniors, given in a relaxed, safe and welcoming space. It’s also about 
connection, laughter and good food. We are so grateful to our Community Bank as without this generous sponsorship
the day would be unaffordable to our local seniors. Sharon Baxter-Judge



 Funding Type  Contribution Recipient  Amount 

Sponsorship 2 Fires Festival of Arts & Activism Inc 5,000$            
Sponsorship Nerriga Progress & Sport Association 500$              
Sponsorship The Lions Club of Braidwood Inc 1,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood CWA 7,500$            
Sponsorship Crookwell Rugby Union Club Inc 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood FM 1,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Preschool Association Inc 1,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Hospital Auxiliary 658$              
Sponsorship Braidwood Show Society 500$              
Sponsorship Majors Creek Festival Inc 10,000$           
Sponsorship Braidwood RSL Sub Branch 1,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Swimming Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Quiliters & Textiles 2,300$            
Sponsorship Crookwell Senior Green Devils Rugby League 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Show Society 12,000$           
Sponsorship 2 Fires Festival of Arts & Activism Inc 1,000$            
Sponsorship Bwd National Theatre Community Centre 7,500$            
Sponsorship Sth Coast Aust Stock Horse Society 1,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Jockey Club Inc 3,300$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Golf Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Show Society 1,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Redbacks Rugby Club 3,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood & District Heavy Horse Assoc. 2,500$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Junior Soccer Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Polocrosse Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Central School P&C 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood National Theatre Community Centre 700$              
Sponsorship Quick Shear Incorporated 3,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Bowling Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Braidwood Preschool Association Inc 500$              
Sponsorship Braidwood Quilters & Textiles 300$              
Donation 1st Braidwood Scout Group 5,455$            
Donation Braidwood Regional Arts Group 18,103$           
Donation Braidwood & District Historical Society 9,595$            
Donation Braidwood Life Centre 4,925$            
Donation Terry Campese Foundation 5,000$            
Donation Bwd & district Historial Society 6,645$            
Donation Braidwood Hospital Auxiliary 3,203$            
Donation Terry Campese Foundation 20,000$           
Donation Braidwood Academy of Creative Arts 5,136$            
Grant Majors Creek Recreation Reserve 22,500$           
Grant Upper Shoalhaven Landcare Council 11,000$           
Grant St Bedes Primary School 45,000$           
Grant Braidwood Central School 31,500$           
Grant Mongarlowe Area Community Association 63,382$           
Grant Consensus Education Foundation 18,180$           
Scholarship Dylan Peters 6,000$            
Scholarship Joshua Clark 3,000$            
Scholarship Fergus Tooth 2,000$            
Scholarship Scarlett Bunn 5,000$            
Scholarship Jade Bunn 2,500$            
Scholarship Imogen Dixon 6,000$            
Grant Upper Shoalhaven Landcare Council 23,236$           
Scholarship Nelson Sargent 6,000$            
Scholarship Samuel Watson 4,000$            
Scholarship Isabella Hindmarsh 6,000$            

Community Funding 2024/25



 Funding Type  Contribution Recipient  Amount 

Community Funding 2024/25

Grant Araluen Progress Association Inc 10,529$           
Grant Mongarlowe Area Community Association 22,462$           
Scholarship Adelaide Wall 4,000$            
Scholarship Jacob McKendry 4,000$            
Grant Consensus Education Foundation 6,750$            
Grant Braidwood Preschool 27,250$           
Sponsorship Bungendore Seniors Association 1,500$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Chambers of Commerce 750$              
Sponsorship Bungendore War Memorial Committee 1,194$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Chamber of Commerce & Industry 750$              
Sponsorship Tarago & District Show Society 5,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Netball Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Rotary Club of Bungendore 5,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Bunyips Cricket Club 3,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Public School P&C (315)$             
Sponsorship Bungendore Quilters 400$              
Sponsorship Bungendore Rodeo Club 3,000$            
Sponsorship Captains Flat Mens Shed 2,000$            
Sponsorship Gunning Pastoral & Ag Society 2,000$            
Sponsorship Rotary Club of Bungendore 2,000$            
Sponsorship Lions Club of Canberra 1,680$            
Sponsorship Lions Club of Bungendore & Districts 2,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Campdraft Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore War Memorial Committee 500$              
Sponsorship Bungendore Rugby Football Club 4,546$            
Sponsorship Rotary Club of Bungendore 2,240$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Seniors Association 4,000$            
Sponsorship Qbyn Evening Branch CWA 2,500$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Preschool 7,500$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Tigers Junior Rugby League FC 5,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore United Football Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Captains Flat Preschool Association 500$              
Sponsorship Rotary Club of Bungendore 1,000$            
Sponsorship Monaro Rugby Union Club 6,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Bowling & Sports Club 5,000$            
Sponsorship Bungendore Bowling & Sports Club 500$              
Sponsorship Bungendore Tigers Junior Rugby League FC 5,000$            
Donation Tarago Bush Fire Brigade 700$              
Donation Sutton Public School P&C 7,500$            
Donation First Steps Pregnancy Support Ltd 10,000$           
Donation In Your Backyard 4,196$            
Donation First Steps Pregnancy Support Ltd 5,000$            
Donation First Steps Pregnancy Support Ltd 190$              
Donation Trojans Trek Foundation 5,000$            
Donation Possumwood Wildlife Recovery & Research 88,730$           
Grant Bungendore Bowling & Sports Club 32,000$           
Grant Bungendore War Memorial Committee 45,000$           
Grant Bungendore Preschool 1,000,000$        
Scholarship Tom Rudd 3,500$            
Scholarship Lachlan Vearing 3,000$            
Scholarship Lachlan English 3,000$            
Scholarship Chloe Parkinson 4,000$            
Scholarship Claire Schweikert 2,000$            
Scholarship Charlotte Jones 4,000$            
Scholarship Meg Donnelly 2,000$            
Scholarship Telara-Ann Edwards 2,000$            
Grant Bungendore CWA 6,813$            
Grant Captains Flat CommunityPreschool Association 35,000$           

Total 1,867,483$      
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Chairperson’s report 
For year ending 30 June 2025

The 2024/25 financial year was another profitable year for Palerang Financial Services Limited  
that has enabled us to continue to allocate substantial funding to our local communities in 
Braidwood, Bungendore and surrounding districts.  

Our profit before interest, tax, and community contributions remained strong at $1,571,529. 

I am proud to report that by providing financial services the company continues to deliver upon its 
purpose to return benefits to the community. During the past financial year, we have continued to 
deliver sponsorships, grants, and donations to our community totaling $2,867,483. Within this total 
amount we allocated $1.0 million to the Community Enterprise Foundation (CEF), a vehicle the 
Community Banks use to hold funds until community projects grants are required and the balance 
of $1,867,483 was given directly to community organisations during the year as sponsorships, 
grants and donations.  

From its commencement in September 2002 until 30 June 2025, PFSL has provided $11.2 million 
directly to our local community including the funds held in the CEF for future projects.  

This total contribution to the community of $11.2 million represents the majority of our 
profit over these past 23 years and clearly demonstrates that we are a substantial, 
sustainable, community-built business that contributes to community prosperity.  

For the 2024/25 financial year, based on a profit result after community contributions 
and before income tax of $176,648, the company has declared a franked dividend of 7.5 
cents per share as of 1 November 2025 to be paid to shareholders in December 2025.

We continue to maintain an excellent structural position on our balance sheet with no 
debt, $4,127,738 in assets and $795,071 in liabilities.

Our success during this last year and for the past 23 years has been built on the back of 
the loyalty of our customers, the hard work of our branch team members, the 
commitment to strong governance of our business by the past and present directors of 
PFSL, and the support we get from our shareholders and the wider community.  Thank 
you all for your contributions to our success.

Garry Cook

Chair

PFSL Board of Directors
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Senior Manager’s Report

For the year ending 30 June 2025

The past year has seen a continuation of margin contraction, resulting in lower 
income and profit. This is despite a $ 22.55 million increase in overall business. 

The interest margin has decreased, especially over the second half of the year. This 
appears to have levelled out, but it will depend on future interest rate movements.

Improvements in lending processes will hopefully streamline the loans and allow for 
growth.

In previous years, we have found it difficult to grow the loan book. It has reduced 
over the past three years.

The headline figures are 

Turnover $3,611,774

Profit $1,571,529  #

Cost to income Ratio 56.48%

Staff cost to income ratio 38.5%

Loans Growth - $2,580,587

Deposit Growth $19,936,006

Other business growth $5,201,002   

Overall Book Growth $22,556,421

# Profit is operating profit before Tax and Community contributions
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As the above graph shows, we are still making higher income and profit than in the 
COVID-19 era of 2021/22. The results are also substantially higher than pre-COVID.

The challenge for this year is to stabilize income and profits at or above the current 
level by increasing business, while maintaining margins and costs. 
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The 2024/25 financial year saw an increase of $22.5 million (5%) in the overall 
banking book. Due to the reduction in margins, income has dropped by 5.7%. We 
are undertaking several initiatives to enhance our business operations and increase 
customer numbers, thereby boosting our revenue.  

We suffered a major blow with the announcement of Bendigo closing all its agencies, 
which meant that we would have to close our Crookwell agency by mid-October 
2025. Crookwell holds approximately 5% of our business. This will be a profit 
increase in the short term as costs are eliminated but it is a negative on overall 
growth.

We said farewell to Carmen Byrne in Community Bank Braidwood & Districts, and 
welcomed Martin Glover and Anjalie Williams in Community Bank Braidwood & 
Districts, and Belle Radburn in Community Bank Bungendore.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the staff across the business for their 
tremendous efforts during a very challenging time, marked by significant change. 

I wish to express my gratitude and appreciation to the members of the board who do 
a tremendous job and dedicate a significant amount of unpaid time to help make the 
company the success it is.

Finally, I wish to thank those who bank with us, as their support ensures our future 
and our Shareholders for their support.

Craig Pettit

Company Manager
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Directors' report
30 June 2025

1

The directors present their report, together with the financial statements, on the company for the year ended 30 June 2025.

Directors
The following persons were directors of the company during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of this report, 
unless otherwise stated:

Name:
Title:
Experience and expertise:

Special responsibilities:

Name:
Title:
Experience and expertise:

Special responsibilities:

Name:
Title:
Experience and expertise:

Special responsibilities:

Name:
Title:
Experience and expertise:

Special responsibilities:

Name:
Title:
Experience and expertise:

Special responsibilities:

Rhyll Elizabeth Tozer
Non-executive director
Chartered Accountant and Registered Tax Agent. Started working career in banking 
for Westpac Melbourne office. Treasurer for Braidwood Life Centre and the 
Bungendore Chamber of Commerce. Chaired the Braidwood Community Help fund 
which dispersed donated funds to affected residents and businesses of the 2019/2020 
bushfires.
Treasurer, Chair of Finance & HR Committee

Richard Elliott
Non-executive director
Richard has a scientific background and has previously sat on the board of a Credit 
Union. Richard was the captain of the Majors Creek Rural Fire Service for 10 years. 
He is involved in several community organisations such as Braidwood National 
Theatre s355 Committee, Braidwood Film Club and the Historical Radio Society. 
Braidwood Community Funding Committee

Garry Edward Cook
Non-executive director
Employed as an agricultural consultant and manager for 42 years including 19 years 
with the Indigenous Land Corporation (Commonwealth Statutory Authority). Member of 
Rotary Club of Bungendore, committee member of Bungendore Rugby Football Club 
and Bungendore Community Foundation. Committee member Bungendore 
Community Foundation. Bachelor of Science (Hons), Graduat  Australian Institute 
of Company Directors and Graduate of Australian Rural Leadership Programme.
Chair, member of Finance & HR Committee, member of Bungendore Community 
Funding Committee & Member of Marketing & Communications Committee

Andrew Trevor Callan
Non-executive director
BA Agriculture / BA Business (UNE). Certificate IV in Metalliferous Mining Operations 
(Underground). NSW Underground Mine Supervisor. Underground Miner. NSW 
Underground Shot Firer. Farmer and Grazier. Chairperson of Braidwood and District 
Education Foundation Committee.
Governance and Risk Committee

Craig Hinder
Non-executive director 
Craig holds a Bachelor of Science (Aviation), Masters of Business and Technology, 
and is a Graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Commencing his 
working career as a commercial pilot, Craig has since held several positions across 
the Australian Public Service, currently employed as a director in the Department of 
Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry. As a local beekeeper, Craig also runs a small 
beekeeping business, is a member of the Goulburn Beekeeping Club and mentors 
several beekeepers in the region.
Bungendore Community Funding Committee
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Name: Alexandra Rofe
Title: Non-executive director 
Experience and expertise: Alexandra has extensive experience working in the public sector, engaged in strategic, 

policy and operational roles, with both business & corporate governance knowledge. In 
her local community Alex has volunteered with Majors Creek Recreation Reserve, the 
Majors Creek ANZAC Committee and the Majors Creek Progress Association.

Special responsibilities: Braidwood Community Funding Committee & Member of Marketing & Communications 
Committee

 
Name: Diana Mary Izzard
Title: Non-executive director (resigned 28 November 2024)
Experience and expertise: Di runs a sheep and cattle farm in the area. She is closely involved with several 

community groups including the Braidwood Show Society and the Gundillion Hall and 
Recreation Trust. Di also has previous experience in administration and accounts 
working in the Australia Federal Public Service and in private enterprise.

Special responsibilities: Finance & HR Committee
 
Name: Shane Anthony Holness (resigned 7th August 2025)
Title: Non-executive director
Experience and expertise: Shane is a Project Management Consultant. AIMM;GAICD. Shane has operated a 

family business since 1999; former director in the APS; former member of the Royal 
Australian Navy. Other current directorships include being Director & Chair of Western 
Riverina Community Financial Services Pty Ltd.

Special responsibilities: Governance & Risk Committee, Finance & HR Committee
 
Name: Dale Josephine Towell (resigned 7th August 2025)
Title: Non-executive director
Experience and expertise: Dale has a degree in Business Management/Secretarial Studies (Economics Major). 

Dale has experience working in the Departments of Education, Defence, Regional 
Development and Infrastructure. Dale is also Secretary, Events Director and Magazine 
Editor for the Goulburn Motor Club. In addition, Dale is also a self-employed piano 
teacher and an Authorised Marriage Celebrant. Dale formerly held directorship in the 
Goulburn Grand Prix Association. 

Special responsibilities: Vice Chair responsibilities, Chair of Governance & Risk Committee, Member of 
Community Funding Committee

 
Company secretary
The Company secretary is Susanne Pluess. Susanne was appointed to the position of Company Secretary on 1 February 
2024.  
 
Experience and expertise: Susi holds an engineering degree in Sustainable Traffic and Town Planning from 

Austria, with 10 years of experience working in the Planning Department of Zurich 
Public Transport. Following this, she has gained 8 years of valuable experience in 
various customer service, sales and bookkeeping roles in rural NSW, bringing a 
unique blend of economical expertise and customer-centric skills to her current 
position.

 
Principal activity
The principal activity of the company during the financial year was facilitating Community Bank services under management 
rights of Bendigo and Adelaide Bank Limited (Bendigo Bank).
 
There have been no significant changes in the nature of this activity during the financial year. 
 
Review of operations
The profit for the company after providing for income tax amounted to $130,844 (30 June 2024: $129,848).
 
Operations have continued to perform in line with expectations.
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Dividends
During the financial year, the following dividends were provided for and paid. The dividends have been provided for in the 
financial statements.
 

2025 2024
$ $

Fully franked dividend of 7.5 cents per share (2024: 7.5 cents) 99,032 99,032 
 
Significant changes in the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the company during the financial year.
 
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board was briefed on a strategic decision to close all agency locations, including the 
Crookwell agency, effective October 2025. This decision was made in response to recent legislative changes, heightened 
compliance obligations, and the financial unsustainability of the existing agency operating model. While the closure will 
result in the loss of physical agency presence in affected communities, customers will retain their accounts and continue to 
access banking services via Australia Post. A preliminary financial analysis presented to the Board indicated that, even with 
a potential reduction of up to 30% in the customer base, the company anticipates an overall increase in annual profitability 
due to the elimination of agency-related operating costs. In addition, a decision was made to transfer $700,000 into a term 
deposit to enhance short-term interest earnings and strengthen the organisation’s cash management strategy. The Board 
has prioritised support for impacted staff and customers, particularly those vulnerable or unfamiliar with digital banking. A 
targeted transition plan has been developed, including face-to-face assistance and community engagement initiatives. 
Additionally, the Board has appointed a dedicated contact for reputation and issues management to ensure consistent and 
coordinated communication. All information regarding the agency closures remains confidential until authorised for public 
release by Bendigo Bank (BEN). The Board will adhere to BEN’s guidance on the timing and content of any external 
communications to ensure alignment with broader strategic objectives.
 
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2025 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the 
company's operations, the results of those operations, or the company's state of affairs in future financial years.
 
Likely developments and expected results of operations
No matter, circumstance or likely development in operations has arisen during or since the end of the financial year that has 
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations or the state of 
affairs of the company.
 
Environmental regulation
The company is not subject to any significant environmental regulation under Australian Commonwealth or State law.
 
Meetings of directors
The number of directors meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) attended by each of the directors of the 
company during the financial year were:
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Board Finance & HR Governance & Risk Marketing & Communications
Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

Garry Edward 
Cook 10 10 10 9 1 1 7 6
Rhyll Elizabeth 
Tozer 10 8 10 10 - - - -
Dale Josephine 
Towell 10 8 - - 3 3 - -
Alexandra Rofe 10 8 - - 1 - 7 7
Richard Elliott 10 10 - - - - - -
Shane Anthony 
Holness 10 7 10 4 - - - -
Andrew Trevor 
Callan 10 8 - - 3 2 - -
Craig Hinder 10 9 - - 3 3 - -
Diana Mary 
Izzard 5 5 2 1 1 - - -
 
Directors' benefits
No director has received or become entitled to receive, during or since the financial year, a benefit because of a contract 
made by the company, controlled entity or related body corporate with a director, a firm which a director is a member or an 
entity in which a director has a substantial financial interest.
 
Directors' interests
The interest in company shareholdings for each director are:
 

Balance at the 
start of the 

year Changes

Balance at the 
end of the 

year

Garry Edward Cook 1,850 - 1,850
Rhyll Elizabeth Tozer - - -
Dale Josephine Towell - - -
Alexandra Rofe - - -
Richard Elliott 9,500 - 9,500
Shane Anthony Holness 2,000 - 2,000
Andrew Trevor Callan - - -
Craig Hinder - - -
Diana Mary Izzard 7,500 - 7,500
 
Shares under option
There were no unissued ordinary shares of the company under option outstanding at the date of this report.
 
Shares issued on the exercise of options
There were no ordinary shares of the company issued on the exercise of options during the year ended 30 June 2025 and 
up to the date of this report.
 
Indemnity and insurance of directors and officers
The company has indemnified all directors and management in respect of liabilities to other persons (other than the 
company or related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors or management of the company except 
where the liability arises out of conduct involving the lack of good faith.
 
Disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium is prohibited by the confidentiality clause of the 
contract of insurance. 
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Proceedings on behalf of the company
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf 
of the company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility 
on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceedings.
 
No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the company with leave of the Court under section 237 of 
the Corporations Act 2001.
 
Indemnity and insurance of auditor
The company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the 
company or any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor.
 
During the financial year, the company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the company 
or any related entity.
 
Non-audit services
The company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory duties where the auditor's 
expertise and experience with the company are important. Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor (Andrew 
Frewin Stewart) for audit and non-audit services provided during the year are set out in note 27 to the accounts.
 
The board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and is satisfied that the provision of 
the non-audit services is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:
 

all non-audit services have been reviewed by the board to ensure they do not impact on the impartiality, integrity and 
objectivity of the auditor
the non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in 
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor's own 
work, acting in a management or decision making capacity for the company, acting as an advocate for the company or 
jointly sharing risks and rewards.

 
Auditor's independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out 
immediately after this directors' report.
 
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.
 
On behalf of the directors
 
 
 
 
___________________________

 

 

Garry Edward Cook
Chair

29 September 2025



Corporations Act 2001

Andrew Frewin Stewart Jessica Ritchie 
Lead Auditor 
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accompanying notes
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Revenue from contracts with customers 6 3,551,007 3,766,448 

Other revenue 11,861 28,964 
Finance revenue 44,987 29,012 
Fair value gains on financial assets 3,919 6,512 
Total revenue 3,611,774 3,830,936 

Employee benefits expense 7 (1,391,622) (1,265,868)
Advertising and marketing costs (61,284) (65,452)
Occupancy and associated costs (70,915) (65,230)
System costs (46,899) (37,766)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7 (106,320) (108,547)
Finance costs (7,152) (3,471)
General administration expenses (356,053) (362,511)
Total expenses before community contributions (2,040,245) (1,908,845)

Profit before community contributions and income tax expense 1,571,529 1,922,091 

Charitable donations, sponsorships and grants expense 7 (1,394,881) (1,751,698)

Profit before income tax expense 176,648 170,393 

Income tax expense 8 (45,804) (40,545)

Profit after income tax expense for the year 130,844 129,848 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gain on the revaluation of land and buildings, net of tax -  629,601 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -  629,601 

Total comprehensive income for the year 130,844 759,449 

Cents Cents

Basic earnings per share 29 9.91 9.83
Diluted earnings per share 29 9.91 9.83
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Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,329,459 479,905 
Trade and other receivables 10 322,216 403,393 
Investments 11 -  674,878 
Current tax assets 8 -  19,590 
Total current assets 1,651,675 1,577,766 

Non-current assets
Financial assets 14 174,876 162,640 
Investment properties 15 17,808 24,318 
Property, plant and equipment 12 2,189,095 2,220,168 
Right-of-use assets 13 71,234 80,525 
Intangible assets 16 23,050 48,425 
Total non-current assets 2,476,063 2,536,076 

Total assets 4,127,738 4,113,842 

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 152,339 173,282 
Lease liabilities 18 22,800 22,135 
Current tax liabilities 8 24,298 -  
Employee benefits 19 155,527 172,779 
Total current liabilities 354,964 368,196 

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 18 70,801 84,534 
Deferred tax liabilities 8 341,941 344,474 
Employee benefits 19 27,365 15,783 
Total non-current liabilities 440,107 444,791 

Total liabilities 795,071 812,987 

Net assets 3,332,667 3,300,855 

Equity
Issued capital 20 1,062,849 1,062,849 
Revaluation reserve 1,052,751 1,052,751 
Retained earnings 1,217,067 1,185,255 

Total equity 3,332,667 3,300,855 
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Issued Revaluation Retained  Total 
  Note capital Reserve earnings equity

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 1,062,849 423,150 1,154,439 2,640,438

Profit after income tax expense - - 129,848 129,848
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 629,601 - 629,601
Total comprehensive income - 629,601 129,848 759,449

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Dividends provided for or paid 22 - - (99,032) (99,032)

Balance at 30 June 2024 1,062,849 1,052,751 1,185,255 3,300,855
 

Issued Revaluation Retained Total
  capital reserve earnings equity

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2024 1,062,849 1,052,751 1,185,255 3,300,855

Profit after income tax expense - - 130,844 130,844

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Dividends provided for or paid 22 - - (99,032) (99,032)

Balance at 30 June 2025 1,062,849 1,052,751 1,217,067 3,332,667
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Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 3,962,498 4,127,959 
Payments to suppliers and employees and for community contributions (inclusive of 
GST) (3,677,562) (3,733,579)
Interest received 47,511 26,488 
Income taxes refunded/(paid) (4,448) 3,644 

Net cash provided by operating activities 28 327,999 424,512 

Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of/(investment in) term deposits 674,878 (674,878)
Payments for property, plant and equipment 12 (31,183) (4,214)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment -  13,636 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 643,695 (665,456)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest and other finance costs paid (7,152) (3,471)
Dividends paid 22 (99,032) (99,032)
Repayment of lease liabilities (15,956) (18,170)

Net cash used in financing activities (122,140) (120,673)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 849,554 (361,617)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 479,905 841,522 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 9 1,329,459 479,905 
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Palerang Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2025

Note 1. Reporting entity

The financial statements cover Palerang Financial Services Limited (the company) as an individual entity, which is a for-
profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

The company is an unlisted public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office 
and principal place of business is Unit 1, 19 Park Lane, Braidwood NSW.

A description of the nature of the company's operations and its principal activity is included in the directors' report, which is 
not part of the financial statements.

Note 2. Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the 
Corporations Act 2001. The financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and 
historical cost basis and are presented in Australian dollars, which is the company's functional and presentation currency.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to pay its debts as and when they 
fall due for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
in preparing the annual financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of directors, on 29 September 2025. The
directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements.

Note 3. Material accounting policy information

The accounting policies that are material to the company are set out either in the respective notes or below. The accounting 
policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, unless otherwise stated.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards
The company has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The company has assessed and 
concluded there are no material impacts.

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, have not
been early adopted by the company for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2025. The company has not yet 
assessed the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations.

Current and non-current classification
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification.

Impairment of financial assets
The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are measured at amortised 
cost. The measurement of the loss allowance depends upon the company's assessment at the end of each reporting period 
as to whether the financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, based on reasonable 
and supportable information that is available, without undue cost or effort to obtain.

Where there has not been a significant increase in exposure to credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month expected 
credit loss allowance is estimated. This represents a portion of the asset's lifetime expected credit losses that is attributable 
to a default event that is possible within the next 12 months. Where a financial asset has become credit impaired or where it 
is determined that credit risk has increased significantly, the loss allowance is based on the asset's lifetime expected credit 
losses. The amount of expected credit loss recognised is measured on the basis of the probability weighted present value of
anticipated cash shortfalls over the life of the instrument discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Note 3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
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Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to 
form a cash-generating unit.
 
Note 4. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. The directors continually evaluate their judgements and estimates in 
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses.
 
The directors base their judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, 
including expectations of future events that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Differences between the 
accounting judgements and estimates and actual results and outcomes are accounted for in future reporting periods. The 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed below.
 
Judgements
 
Timing of revenue recognition associated with trail commission
The company receives trailing commission from Bendigo Bank for products and services sold. Ongoing trailing commission 
payments are recognised on a monthly basis when earned as there is insufficient detail readily available to estimate the 
most likely amount of revenue without a high probability of significant reversal in a subsequent reporting period. The receipt 
of ongoing trailing commission revenue is outside the control of the company.
 
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables
The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the 
lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected 
credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.
 
The company has not recognised an allowance for expected credit losses in relation to trade and other receivables for the 
following reasons:

The company's trade receivables are limited to the monthly profit share distribution from Bendigo Bank, which is received 
10 business days post month end.
The credit risk (i.e. the risk that a customer will not make repayments) is for Bendigo Bank to bear as long as the company 
has complied with the appropriate procedures and relevant obligations and has not exercised a discretion in granting or 
extending credit. The directors are not aware of any such non-compliance at balance date.
The company has reviewed credit ratings provided by Standard & Poors, Moody's and Fitch Ratings to determine the 
level of credit exposure to the company.
The company has not experienced any instances of default in relation to receivables owed to the company from Bendigo 
Bank.

 
Fair value measurement hierarchy 
The company is required to classify all assets and liabilities, measured at fair value, using a three level hierarchy, based on 
the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being:
Level 1: inputs are based on the quoted market price at the close of business at the end of the reporting period
Level 2: inputs are based on a valuation performed by a third party qualified valuer using quoted prices for similar 

assets in an active market
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Considerable judgement is required to determine what is significant to fair value and therefore which category the asset or 
liability is placed in can be subjective.
 
The fair value of assets and liabilities classified as level 3 is determined by the use of valuation models. These include 
discounted cash flow analysis or the use of observable inputs that require significant adjustments based on unobservable 
inputs.
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
The company assesses impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets at 
each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the company and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. 
If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of 
disposal or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions. The directors did not 
identify any impairment indications during the financial year.
 
Recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the company considers it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
 
Lease term
The lease term is a significant component in the measurement of both the right-of-use asset and lease liability. Judgement is 
exercised in determining whether there is reasonable certainty that an option to extend the lease will be exercised, or an 
option to terminate the lease will not be exercised, when ascertaining the periods to be included in the lease term.
 
In determining the lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an economical incentive to exercise an extension 
option, or not to exercise a termination option, are considered at the lease commencement date. Factors considered may 
include the importance of the asset to the company's operations, comparison of terms and conditions to prevailing market 
rates, incurrence of significant penalties, existence of significant leasehold improvements and the costs and disruption to 
replace the asset. The company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, or not exercise 
a termination option, if there is a significant event or significant change in circumstances.
 
The company includes extension options applicable to the lease of branch premises in its calculations of both the right-of-
use asset and lease liability except where the company is reasonably certain it will not exercise the extension option. This is 
due to the significant disruption of relocating premises and the loss on disposal of leasehold improvements fitted out in the 
leased premises.
 
Estimates and assumptions
 
Estimation of useful lives of assets
The company determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant 
and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations 
or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than previously 
estimated lives or assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written down.
 
Incremental borrowing rate 
Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for the company’s lease 
agreements, an incremental borrowing rate is estimated to discount future lease payments to measure the present value of 
the lease liability at the lease commencement date. This rate is based on what the company estimates it would have to pay 
a third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset, with similar terms, 
security and economic environment.
 
Sublease classification 
Judgement is required to determine the classification of the sublease as either an operating or a finance sublease. 
 
Employee benefits provision 
The liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date are recognised and 
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all employees at the reporting 
date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and inflation have been taken into account.
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The company uses historical employee attrition rates in determining the probability of an employee, at a given date, 
achieving continuous employment to be eligible for entitlement in accordance with long service leave legislation.
 
In the absence of sufficient historical employee attrition rates, the company applies a benchmark probability rate from across 
the Community Bank network to factor in estimating the probability of an employee, at a given date, achieving continuous 
employment to be eligible for entitlement in accordance with legislation.
 
Note 5. Economic dependency
 
The company is economically dependent on its franchise agreement with Bendigo Bank to generate revenue. The current 
agreement operates for three five years terms, with the company being in the second term which expires in June 2026. The 
directors intend to exercise the option to renew the franchise agreement for a 5 year term commencing June 2026.
 
The company has entered into a franchise agreement with Bendigo Bank that governs the management of the Community 
Bank.
 
The company operates as a franchise of Bendigo Bank, using the name “Bendigo Bank” and the logo and system of 
operations of Bendigo Bank. The company manages the Community Bank on behalf of Bendigo Bank, however all 
transactions with customers conducted through the Community Bank are effectively conducted between the customers and 
Bendigo Bank.
 
All deposits are made with Bendigo Bank, and all personal and investment products are products of Bendigo Bank, with the 
company facilitating the provision of those products. All loans, leases or hire purchase transactions, issues of new credit or 
debit cards, temporary or bridging finance and any other transaction that involves creating a new debt, or increasing or 
changing the terms of an existing debt owed to Bendigo Bank, must be approved by Bendigo Bank. All credit transactions 
are made with Bendigo Bank, and all credit products are products of Bendigo Bank.
 
The company promotes and sells the products and services, but is not a party to the transaction.
 
The credit risk (i.e. the risk that a customer will not make repayments) is for the relevant Bendigo Bank entity to bear as long 
as the company has complied with the appropriate procedures and relevant obligations and has not exercised a discretion in 
granting or extending credit. 
 
Bendigo Bank provides significant assistance in establishing and maintaining the Community Bank franchise operations. It 
also continues to provide ongoing management and operational support and other assistance and guidance in relation to all 
aspects of the franchise operation, including advice and assistance in relation to:

the design, layout and fit out of the Community Bank premises
training for the branch manager and other employees in banking, management systems and interface protocol
methods and procedures for the sale of products and provision of services
security and cash logistic controls
calculation of company revenue and payment of many operating and administrative expenses
the formulation and implementation of advertising and promotional programs
sales techniques and proper customer relations
providing payroll services. 

 
Note 6. Revenue from contracts with customers
 

2025 2024
$ $

Margin income 3,352,068 3,538,549 
Fee income 107,889 136,799 
Commission income 91,050 91,100 

3,551,007 3,766,448 
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Accounting policy for revenue from contracts with customers
The company has entered into a franchise agreement with Bendigo Bank. The company delivers banking and financial 
services of Bendigo Bank to its community. The franchise agreement provides for a share of interest, fee, and commission 
revenue earned by the company. Interest margin share is based on a funds transfer pricing methodology which recognises 
that income is derived from deposits held, and that loans granted incur a funding cost. Fees are based on the company's 
current fee schedule and commissions are based on the agreements in place. All margin revenue is recorded as non-
interest income when the company's right to receive the payment is established.
 
The company acts as an agent under the franchise agreement and revenue arises from the rendering of services through its 
franchise agreement. 
 
Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, at the fair value of consideration specified in the franchise agreement, as 
follows:
 
Revenue stream Includes Performance obligation Timing of recognition
Franchise agreement profit 
share

Margin, commission, and fee 
income

When the company satisfies 
its obligation to arrange for the 
services to be provided to the 
customer by the supplier 
(Bendigo Bank as franchisor).

On completion of the provision 
of the relevant service. 
Revenue is accrued monthly 
and paid within 10 business 
days after the end of each 
month.

 
All revenue is stated net of the amount of GST. There was no revenue from contracts with customers recognised over time 
during the financial year.
 
Revenue calculation
The franchise agreement provides that three forms of revenue may be earned by the company which are margin, 
commission and fee income. Bendigo Bank decides the form of revenue the company earns on different types of products 
and services. The revenue earned by the company is dependent on the business that it generates. 
 
Margin income
Margin income on core banking products is arrived at through the following calculation:

Interest paid by customers on loans less interest paid to customers on deposits
plus: any deposit returns i.e. interest return applied by Bendigo Bank for a deposit
minus: any costs of funds i.e. interest applied by Bendigo Bank to fund a loan.
 
The company is entitled to a share of the margin earned by Bendigo Bank. If this reflects a loss, the company incurs a share 
of that loss.
 
Commission income
Commission income is generated from the sale of products and services. This commission is recognised at a point in time 
which reflects when the company has fulfilled its performance obligation. Refer to note 4 for further information regarding 
key judgements applied by the directors in relation to the timing of revenue recognition from trail commission.
 
Fee income
Fee income is a share of what is commonly referred to as 'bank fees and charges' charged to customers by Bendigo Bank 
including fees for loan applications and account transactions.
 
Core banking products
Bendigo Bank has identified some products and services as 'core banking products'. It may change the products and 
services which are identified as core banking products by giving the company at least 30 days' notice. Core banking 
products currently include Bendigo Bank branded home loans, term deposits and at call deposits.  
 
Ability to change financial return
Under the franchise agreement, Bendigo Bank may change the form and amount of financial return the company receives. 
The reasons it may make a change include changes in industry or economic conditions or changes in the way Bendigo Bank 
earns revenue. 
 



Palerang Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2025
 
Note 6. Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
 

 
16

The change may be to the method of calculation of margin, the amount of margin, commission and fee income or a change 
of a margin to a commission or vice versa. This may affect the amount of revenue the company receives on a particular 
product or service. 
 
Bendigo Bank must not reduce the margin and commission the company receives on core banking products and services to 
less than 50% (on an aggregate basis) of Bendigo Bank’s margin at that time. For other products and services, there is no 
restriction on the change Bendigo Bank may make.
 
Note 7. Expenses
 
Employee benefits expense
 

2025 2024
$ $

Wages and salaries 1,180,876 1,064,282 
Non-cash benefits 12,900 11,840 
Superannuation contributions 141,626 123,203 
Expenses related to long service leave (8,996) 2,981 
Other expenses 65,216 63,562 

1,391,622 1,265,868 
 
Depreciation and amortisation expense

2025 2024
$ $

Depreciation of non-current assets
Buildings 35,863 24,663 
Plant and equipment 11,783 11,890 
Motor vehicles 14,610 15,490 

62,256 52,043 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Leased land and buildings 11,602 14,752 
Leased investment property 7,087 3,688 

18,689 18,440 

Amortisation of intangible assets
Franchise fee 25,375 38,064 

106,320 108,547 
 
Charitable donations, sponsorships and grants expense

2025 2024
$ $

Direct donation, sponsorship and grant payments 394,881 351,698 
Contribution to the Community Enterprise Foundation™ 1,000,000 1,400,000 

1,394,881 1,751,698 
 
The overarching philosophy of the Community Bank model, is to support the local community in which the company 
operates. This is achieved by circulating the flow of financial capital into the local economy through community contributions 
(such as donations, sponsorships and grants).
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The funds contributed to and held by the Community Enterprise Foundation™ (CEF) are available for distribution as grants 
to eligible applicants for a specific purpose in consultation with the directors.
 
When the company pays a contribution in to the CEF, the company loses control over the funds at that point. While the 
directors are involved in the payment of grants, the funds are not refundable to the company.
 
Note 8. Income tax
 

2025 2024
$ $

Income tax expense
Current tax 48,337 49,858 
Movement in deferred tax (2,533) 203,047 
Under/over provision in respect to prior years -  (2,480)
Property, plant and equipment at FVTOCI -  (209,880)

Aggregate income tax expense 45,804 40,545 

Prima facie income tax reconciliation
Profit before income tax expense 176,648 170,393 

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% 44,162 42,598 

Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 1,642 427 

45,804 43,025 
Under/over provision in respect to prior years -  (2,480)

Income tax expense 45,804 40,545 
 

2025 2024
$ $

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
Property, plant and equipment 386,486 389,992 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,929 1,949 
Right-of-use assets 22,261 26,211 
Income accruals -  631 
Lease liabilities (23,400) (26,667)
Employee provisions (46,335) (47,642)

Deferred tax liability 341,941 344,474 
 

2025 2024
$ $

Income tax refund due -  19,590 
 

2025 2024
$ $

Provision for income tax 24,298 -  
 



Palerang Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2025
 
Note 8. Income tax (continued)
 

 
18

Accounting policy for income tax
The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the applicable 
income tax rate adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused 
tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable.
 
Accounting policy for current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
 
Accounting policy for deferred tax
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
 
Note 9. Cash and cash equivalents
 

2025 2024
$ $

Cash at bank and on hand 1,329,459 479,905 
 
Note 10. Trade and other receivables
 

2025 2024
$ $

Trade receivables 279,328 331,497 

Other receivables 33,308 57,368 
Accrued income -  2,524 
Prepayments 9,580 12,004 

42,888 71,896 

322,216 403,393 
 

2025 2024
$ $

Financial assets at amortised cost classified as trade and other receivables
Total trade and other receivables 322,216 403,393 
Less GST refundable from the ATO, included in trade and other receivables (27,228) (96,167)
Less prepayments (9,580) (12,004)

285,408 295,222 
 
Accounting policy for trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. The company's trade receivables are limited to the monthly 
profit share distribution from Bendigo Bank, which is received 10 business days post month end.
 
Note 11. Investments
 

2025 2024
$ $

Current assets
Term deposits -  674,878 
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Note 12. Property, plant and equipment
 

2025 2024
$ $

Land - at fair value 692,200 692,200 

Buildings - at fair value 1,510,385 1,499,016 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (132,465) (96,602)

1,377,920 1,402,414 

Plant and equipment - at cost 340,595 320,781 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (250,798) (239,015)

89,797 81,766 

Motor vehicles - at cost 81,283 81,283 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (52,105) (37,495)

29,178 43,788 

2,189,095 2,220,168 
 
Reconciliations of the carrying values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out below:
 

Land Buildings
Plant and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles Total

$ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2023 418,105 861,704 89,442 59,278 1,428,529
Additions - - 4,214 - 4,214
Revaluation increments 274,095 565,373 - - 839,468
Depreciation - (24,663) (11,890) (15,490) (52,043)

Balance at 30 June 2024 692,200 1,402,414 81,766 43,788 2,220,168
Additions - 11,369 19,814 - 31,183
Depreciation - (35,863) (11,783) (14,610) (62,256)

Balance at 30 June 2025 692,200 1,377,920 89,797 29,178 2,189,095
 
Fair value 
The fair value of property was determined by external, independent property valuers, having recognised professional 
qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. Independent valuers provide 
the fair value of the company's investment property portfolio every 3 to 5 years.
 
The company's Braidwood and Bungendore properties were independently valued effective 11 October 2023 by Opteon. 
 
Accounting policy for property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or fair value as applicable, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items.
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment over 
their expected useful lives as follows
 
Land and buildings 6 to 80 years
Plant and equipment 5 to 40 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
 
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the assets.
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the 
company. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. Any 
revaluation surplus reserve relating to the item disposed of is transferred directly to retained profits.
 
Note 13. Right-of-use assets
 

2025 2024
$ $

Land and buildings - right-of-use 151,713 149,402 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (80,479) (68,877)

71,234 80,525 
 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out 
below:
 

Land and 
buildings

$

Balance at 1 July 2023 10,056
Remeasurement adjustments 85,221
Depreciation expense (14,752)

Balance at 30 June 2024 80,525
Remeasurement adjustments 2,311
Depreciation expense (11,602)

Balance at 30 June 2025 71,234
 
Accounting policy for right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for costs 
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any 
lease incentives received.
 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease. Right-of-use assets are 
subject to impairment and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
 
Refer to note 18 for more information on lease arrangements.
 
Note 14. Financial assets
 

2025 2024
$ $

Equity securities - at FVTPL 174,876 162,640 
 
Accounting policy for financial assets
Financial assets are recognised at their market value. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash 
flows have been transferred and the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 
 
The company classifies investments as a current asset when it expects to realise the asset or intends to sell or consume it, 
no more than 12 months after the reporting period. All other investments are classified as non-current.
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Note 15. Investment properties
 

2025 2024
$ $

Investment property - sublease - at cost 37,928 37,351 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (20,120) (13,033)

17,808 24,318 
 
Accounting policy for investment properties - sublease
The company subleases some of its property. The company initially measures the head lease in accordance with AASB16 
before separately identifying the sublease portion under AASB 140: Investment Property. The investment property is initially 
measured at cost under AASB 16: Leases and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation under AASB 
140: Investment Property. 
 
Note 16. Intangible assets
 

2025 2024
$ $

Franchise fee 328,359 328,359 
Less: Accumulated amortisation (305,309) (279,934)

23,050 48,425 
 
Reconciliations of the written down carrying values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are 
set out below:
 

Franchise fee
$

Balance at 1 July 2023 86,489
Amortisation expense (38,064)

Balance at 30 June 2024 48,425
Amortisation expense (25,375)

Balance at 30 June 2025 23,050
 
Accounting policy for intangible assets
Intangible assets of the company relate to the franchise fees paid to Bendigo Bank which conveys the right to operate the 
Community Bank franchise. 
 
Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases 
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. 
 
The franchise fees paid by the company are amortised over their useful life and assessed for impairment whenever 
impairment indicators are present. 
 
The estimated useful life and amortisation method for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Asset class Method Useful life Expiry/renewal date
Franchise fee Straight-line Over the franchise term (5 years) June 2026
 
Amortisation methods, useful life, and residual values are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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Note 17. Trade and other payables
 

2025 2024
$ $

Current liabilities
Trade payables 6,575 93,507 
Other payables and accruals 145,764 79,775 

152,339 173,282 
 
Note 18. Lease liabilities
 

2025 2024
$ $

Current liabilities
Land and buildings lease liabilities 22,800 22,135 

Non-current liabilities
Land and buildings lease liabilities 70,801 84,534 
 
Reconciliation of lease liabilities

2025 2024
$ $

Opening balance 106,669 13,735 
Additional lease liabilities recognised -  111,039 
Remeasurement adjustments 2,888 65 
Lease interest expense 7,152 3,471 
Lease payments - total cash outflow (23,108) (21,641)

93,601 106,669 
 

Lease Discount rate
Non-cancellable 
term

Renewal options 
available

Reasonably 
certain to exercise 
options

Lease term end 
date used in 
calculations

Park Lane Lease 7.50% 2 years 2 x 2 years Yes February 2030
 
Accounting policy for lease liabilities
A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, including renewal options if the company is reasonably 
certain to exercise such options, discounted using the company’s incremental borrowing rate.
 
The company has applied the following accounting policy choices in relation to lease liabilities:
 

The company has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components when calculating the lease liability for 
property leases. 
The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and low-value 
assets, which include the company’s lease of information technology equipment. The company recognises the lease 
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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Note 19. Employee benefits
 

2025 2024
$ $

Current liabilities
Annual leave 73,830 70,504 
Long service leave 81,697 102,275 

155,527 172,779 

Non-current liabilities
Long service leave 27,365 15,783 
 
Accounting policy for short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for annual leave and long service leave expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Non-accumulating non-vesting sick leave is 
expensed when the leave is taken and is measured at the rates paid or payable.
 
Accounting policy for other long-term employee benefits
The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are 
measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to 
the reporting date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures 
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate 
bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
 
Remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
 
Note 20. Issued capital
 

2025 2024 2025 2024
Shares Shares $ $

Ordinary shares - fully paid 1,062,849 1,062,849 1,062,849 1,062,849 
Bonus shares - fully paid (2:1) 257,570 257,570 -  -  

1,320,419 1,320,419 1,062,849 1,062,849 
 
Accounting policy for issued capital
Ordinary shares are recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the company being $1 per share. Any 
transaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the share 
proceeds received. 
 
Rights attached to issued capital
 
Ordinary shares
Voting rights
Subject to some limited exceptions, each member has the right to vote at a general meeting.
 
On a show of hands or a poll, each member attending the meeting (whether they are attending the meeting in person or by 
attorney, corporate representative or proxy) has one vote, regardless of the number of shares held. However, where a 
person attends a meeting in person and is entitled to vote in more than one capacity (for example, the person is a member 
and has also been appointed as proxy for another member) that person may only exercise one vote on a show of hands. On 
a poll, that person may exercise one vote as a member and one vote for each other member that person represents as duly 
appointed attorney, corporate representative or proxy.
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The purpose of giving each member only one vote, regardless of the number of shares held, is to reflect the nature of the 
company as a community based company, by providing that all members of the community who have contributed to the 
establishment and ongoing operation of the Community Bank branch have the same ability to influence the operation of the 
company.
 
Dividends
Generally, dividends are payable to members in proportion to the amount of the share capital paid up on the shares held by 
them, subject to any special rights and restrictions for the time being attaching to shares. The franchise agreement with 
Bendigo Bank contains a limit on the level of profits or funds that may be distributed to shareholders. There is also a 
restriction on the payment of dividends to certain shareholders if they have a prohibited shareholding interest (see below).
 
Transfer
Generally, ordinary shares are freely transferable. However, the directors have a discretion to refuse to register a transfer of 
shares. 
 
Subject to the foregoing, shareholders may transfer shares by a proper transfer effected in accordance with the company’s 
constitution and the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
Prohibited shareholding interest
A person must not have a prohibited shareholding interest in the company.
 
In summary, a person has a prohibited shareholding interest if any of the following applies:
 

They control or own 10% or more of the shares in the company (the "10% limit").
In the opinion of the board they do not have a close connection to the community or communities in which the company 
predominantly carries on business (the "close connection test").

 
As with voting rights, the purpose of this prohibited shareholding provision is to reflect the community-based nature of the 
company.
 
Where a person has a prohibited shareholding interest, the voting and dividend rights attaching to the shares in which the 
person (and their associates) has a prohibited shareholding interest in are suspended.
 
The board has the power to request information from a person who has (or is suspected by the board of having) a legal or 
beneficial interest in any shares in the company or any voting power in the company, for the purpose of determining whether 
a person has a prohibited shareholding interest. If the board becomes aware that a member has a prohibited shareholding 
interest, it must serve a notice requiring the member (or the member's associate) to dispose of the number of shares the 
board considers necessary to remedy the breach. If a person fails to comply with such a notice within a specified period 
(that must be between three and six months), the board is authorised to sell the specified shares on behalf of that person. 
The holder will be entitled to the consideration from the sale of the shares, less any expenses incurred by the board in 
selling or otherwise dealing with those shares.
 
In the constitution, members acknowledge and recognise that the exercise of the powers given to the Board may cause 
considerable disadvantage to individual members, but that such a result may be necessary to enforce the prohibition.
 
Note 21. Capital management
 
The board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to sustain future development of the company. The board 
monitor the return on capital and the level of distributions to shareholders. Capital is represented by total equity as recorded 
in the statement of financial position.
 
In accordance with the franchise agreement, in any 12 month period the funds distributed to shareholders shall not exceed 
the distribution limit.
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The distribution limit is the greater of:
20% of the profit or funds of the company otherwise available for distribution to shareholders in that 12 month period; 
and
subject to the availability of distributable profits, the relevant rate of return multiplied by the average level of share capital 
of the company over that 12 month period where the relevant rate of return is equal to the weighted average interest rate 
on 90 day bank bills over that 12 month period plus 5%.

 
The board is managing the growth of the business in line with this requirement. There are no other externally imposed 
capital requirements, although the nature of the company is such that amounts will be paid in the form of charitable 
donations and sponsorship. Charitable donations and sponsorship paid for the financial year can be seen in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive Income. 
 
There were no changes in the company's approach to capital management during the year.
 
Note 22. Dividends
 
The following dividends were provided for and paid to shareholders during the financial year as presented in the Statement 
of changes in equity and Statement of cash flows.
 

2025 2024
$ $

Fully franked dividend of 7.5 cents per share (2024: 7.5 cents) 99,032 99,032 
 
Franking credits 

2025 2024
$ $

Franking account balance at the beginning of the financial year 609,431 646,086 
Franking credits (debits) arising from income taxes paid (refunded) 4,448 (3,644)
Franking debits from the payment of franked distributions (33,011) (33,011)

580,868 609,431 

Franking transactions that will arise subsequent to the financial year end:
Balance at the end of the financial year 580,868 609,431 
Franking credits (debits) that will arise from payment (refund) of income tax 24,298 (19,590)
Franking credits available for future reporting periods 605,166 589,841 
 
The ability to utilise franking credits is dependent upon the company's ability to declare dividends. The tax rate at which 
future dividends will be franked is 25%.
 
Accounting policy for dividends
Dividends are recognised when declared during the financial year and no longer at the discretion of the company.
 
Note 23. Financial risk management
 
The company's financial instruments include trade receivables and payables, cash and cash equivalents, investments and 
lease liabilities. The company does not have any derivatives. 
 
The directors are responsible for monitoring and managing the financial risk exposure of the company, to which end it 
monitors the financial risk management policies and exposures and approves financial transactions within the scope of its 
authority. 
 
The directors have identified that the only significant financial risk exposures of the company are liquidity and market (price) 
risk. Other financial risks are not significant to the company due to the following factors: 
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The company has no foreign exchange risk as all of its account balances and transactions are in Australian Dollars. 
The company's franchise agreement limits the company's credit exposure to one financial institution, being Bendigo 
Bank. The company monitors credit worthiness through review of credit ratings, Bendigo Bank is rated A- on Standard & 
Poor's credit ratings. 
The company has no direct exposure to movements in commodity prices. 
The company’s interest-bearing instruments are held at amortised cost which have fair values that approximate their 
carrying value since all cash and payables have maturity dates within 12 months. 
The company has no borrowings. 

 
Further details regarding the categories of financial instruments held by the company that hold such exposure are detailed 
below.
 

2025 2024
$ $

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables (note 10) 285,408 295,222 
Cash and cash equivalents (note 9) 1,329,459 479,905 
Financial assets (note 14) 174,876 162,640 
Investments (note 11) -  674,878 

1,789,743 1,612,645 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (note 17) 152,339 173,282 
Lease liabilities (note 18) 93,601 106,669 

245,940 279,951 
 
At balance date, the fair value of financial instruments approximated their carrying values.  
 
Accounting policy for financial instruments 
 
Financial assets 
 
Classification 
The company measures its financial assets into the following categories: 
 

Amortised cost 
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 
Financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the 
classification of the financial asset. 
 
The company’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents and investments in term deposits.  
 
The company’s financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise investments in listed entities over which the company does 
not have significant influence nor control.
 
Derecognition 
A financial asset is derecognised when the company’s contractual right to its cash flows expires, or the asset is transferred 
in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.  
 
Impairment of trade and other receivables 
Impairment of trade receivables is determined using the simplified approach which uses an estimation of lifetime expected 
credit losses. The company has not recognised an allowance for expected credit losses in relation to trade and other 
receivables. Refer to note 4 for further information. 
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Financial liabilities 
 
Classification 
The company measures its financial liabilities at amortised cost. 
 
The company's financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other payables and lease liabilities.
 
Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, cancelled or expires. 
 
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - e.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and equity prices - will 
affect the company's income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. 
 
Interest-bearing assets and liabilities are held with Bendigo Bank and earnings on those are subject to movements in market 
interest rates. The company held cash and cash equivalents of $1,329,459 and term deposits of nil at 30 June 2025 (2024: 
$479,905 and $674,878).
 
Price risk
The primary goal of the company's investment in equity securities is to hold the investments for the long term for strategic 
purposes.
 
Equity Price risk
All of the company's listed equity investments are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX). All unlisted equity 
investments trade shares through a Low Volume Financial Market. Changes in equity securities value is recognised through 
profit or loss or other comprehensive income. 
 

2025
% change 
increase

Effect on 
profit before 

tax
Effect on 

equity
% change 
decrease

Effect on 
profit before 

tax
Effect on 

equity

Equity securities 10% 17,487 13,115 (10%) (17,487) (13,115)
 

2024
% change 
increase

Effect on 
profit before 

tax
Effect on 

equity
% change 
decrease

Effect on 
profit before 

tax
Effect on 

equity

Equity securities 10% 16,264 12,198 (10%) (16,264) (12,198)
 
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation.
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The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities. The contractual cash flow amounts are gross 
and undiscounted and therefore may differ from their carrying amount in the statement of financial position.
 

1 year or less
Between 1 
and 5 years Over 5 years

Remaining 
contractual 
maturities

2025 $ $ $ $

Trade and other payables 152,339 - - 152,339
Lease liabilities 23,566 86,409 - 109,975
Total non-derivatives 175,905 86,409 - 262,314
 

1 year or less
Between 1 
and 5 years Over 5 years

Remaining 
contractual 
maturities

2024 $ $ $ $

Trade and other payables 173,282 - - 173,282
Lease liabilities 22,880 91,519 15,253 129,652
Total non-derivatives 196,162 91,519 15,253 302,934
 
Note 24. Fair value measurement
 
Fair value hierarchy
The following tables detail the company's assets and liabilities, measured or disclosed at fair value, using a three level 
hierarchy, based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 
measurement date
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2025 $ $ $ $

Assets
Equity securities 174,876 - - 174,876
Land and buildings - 2,055,000 - 2,055,000
Total assets 174,876 2,055,000 - 2,229,876
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2024 $ $ $ $

Assets
Equity securities 162,640 - - 162,640
Land and buildings - 2,055,000 - 2,055,000
Total assets 162,640 2,055,000 - 2,217,640
 
There were no transfers between levels during the financial year.
 
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and 
transfers between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement.
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For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not 
available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge and 
reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an analysis is 
undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a comparison, where 
applicable, with external sources of data.
 
Note 25. Key management personnel disclosures
 
The following persons were directors of Palerang Financial Services Limited during the financial year and/or up to the date 
of signing of these financial statements.
 
Garry Edward Cook Richard Elliott
Rhyll Elizabeth Tozer Shane Anthony Holness
Dale Josephine Towell Andrew Trevor Callan
Diana Mary Izzard Craig Hinder
Alexandra Rofe
 
No director of the company receives remuneration for services as a company director or committee member.
 
There are no executives within the company whose remuneration is required to be disclosed.
 
Note 26. Related party transactions
 
Key management personnel
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 25.
 
Receivable from and payable to related parties
There were no trade receivables from or trade payables to related parties at the current and previous reporting date.
 
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those 
available to other parties unless otherwise stated.
 
Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:
 

2025 2024
$ $

The company provided sponsorships to community groups where company directors are also 
committee members. -  64,364 
Majors Creek Recreation Reserve - CEF Grant - Renovation of Hall Verandah 22,500 -  
Braidwood Show Society Inc 12,000 -  
Gundillion Recreational Reserve 100 -  
Braidwood Polocrosse 5,000 -  
Braidwood National Theatre; Replacement Unflued Gas Heater 7,500 -  
PFSL granted $15,000 to Braidwood and District Education Foundation. 15,000 -  
Rotary Club of Bungendore sponsorships 5,240 -  
Bungendore Rugby Union Football Club 4,564 -  
Bungendore Chamber of Commerce & Industry - Business Forum 1,500 -  
Braidwood Life Centre - Christmas Hampers 4,925 -  
Save the Bungendore Preschool 1,000,000 -  
Bungendore Bowling & Sports Club 37,500 -  
 



Palerang Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2025
 

 
30

Note 27. Remuneration of auditors
 
During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by Andrew Frewin Stewart, the 
auditor of the company:
 

2025 2024
$ $

Audit services 
Audit or review of the financial statements 9,030 7,650 

Other services 
Taxation advice and tax compliance services 265 700 
General advisory services 3,340 4,613 

3,605 5,313 

12,635 12,963 
 
Note 28. Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash provided by operating activities
 

2025 2024
$ $

Profit after income tax expense for the year 130,844 129,848 

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 106,319 108,547 
Increase in fair value of equity instruments designated at FVTPL (3,919) (6,512)
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets -  (13,636)
Income reinvested in financial assets (12,235) (11,572)
Lease liabilities interest 7,152 3,471 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in trade and other receivables 81,177 74,591 
Decrease in income tax refund due 19,590 51,116 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (17,024) 92,851 
Increase in provision for income tax 24,298 -  
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (2,533) (6,833)
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits (5,670) 2,641 

Net cash provided by operating activities 327,999 424,512 
 
Note 29. Earnings per share
 

2025 2024
$ $

Profit after income tax 130,844 129,848 
 

Number Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share 1,320,419 1,320,419

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share 1,320,419 1,320,419
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Cents Cents

Basic earnings per share 9.91 9.83
Diluted earnings per share 9.91 9.83
 
Note 30. Commitments
 
The company has no commitments contracted for which would be provided for in future reporting periods.
 
Note 31. Contingencies
 
There were no contingent liabilities or contingent assets at the date of this report.
 
Note 32. Events after the reporting period
 
Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board was briefed on a strategic decision to close all agency locations, including the 
Crookwell agency, effective October 2025. This decision was made in response to recent legislative changes, heightened 
compliance obligations, and the financial unsustainability of the existing agency operating model. While the closure will 
result in the loss of physical agency presence in affected communities, customers will retain their accounts and continue to 
access banking services via Australia Post. A preliminary financial analysis presented to the Board indicated that, even with 
a potential reduction of up to 30% in the customer base, the company anticipates an overall increase in annual profitability 
due to the elimination of agency-related operating costs. In addition, a decision was made to transfer $700,000 into a term 
deposit to enhance short-term interest earnings and strengthen the organisation’s cash management strategy. The Board 
has prioritised support for impacted staff and customers, particularly those vulnerable or unfamiliar with digital banking. A 
targeted transition plan has been developed, including face-to-face assistance and community engagement initiatives. 
Additionally, the Board has appointed a dedicated contact for reputation and issues management to ensure consistent and 
coordinated communication. All information regarding the agency closures remains confidential until authorised for public 
release by Bendigo Bank (BEN). The Board will adhere to BEN’s guidance on the timing and content of any external 
communications to ensure alignment with broader strategic objectives.
 
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2025 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the 
company's operations, the results of those operations, or the company's state of affairs in future financial years.
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In the directors' opinion:
 

the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting Standards, the 
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;

 
the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board as described in the notes to the financial statements;

 
the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 30 June 
2025 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date;

 
there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due 
and payable; and

 
the company does not have any controlled entities and is not required by the Accounting Standards to prepare 
consolidated financial statements. Therefore, a consolidated entity disclosure statement has not been included as section 
295(3A)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001 does not apply to the entity.

 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.
 
On behalf of the directors
 
 
 
 
___________________________
Garry Edward Cook
Chair
 

 
29 September 2025
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